
Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 1 

Meeting 
of the 

Iron Range Resources Board 
 
 

June 18, 2009 
9:00 a.m. 

Iron Range Resources 
Eveleth, Minnesota 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 2 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Iron Range Resources, Eveleth, Minnesota 

Thursday, June 18, 2009 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
AGENDA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 31, 2009, MINUTES ............................................................................................. 4 
FY10 AGENCY INVESTMENT PLAN .................................................................................................................... 9 
DOUGLAS J. JOHNSON ECONOMIC PROTECTION TRUST FUND ............................................................ 10 

MAGNETATION, INC................................................................................................................................................. 11 
GREG COOK LOGGING, INC. .................................................................................................................................... 16 
COMMUNITY BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP GRANT PROGRAM ........................................................................................ 18 
WAGE SUBSIDY PROGRAM ...................................................................................................................................... 20 

TACONITE AREA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION FUND ....................................................................... 22 
CITY OF ELY – IRON RANGE YOUTH IN ACTION ...................................................................................................... 23 

 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 3 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Iron Range Resources 

Eveleth, Minnesota 
Thursday, June 18 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Agenda 

 
1) Roll Call 
 
 
2) Approval of the March 31, 2009, Minutes 
 
 
3) Commissioner’s Comments 
 
 
4) FY10 Agency Investment Plan 

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 
 
 
5) Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 
a) Magnetation, Inc.  
b) Greg Cook Logging, Inc. 
c) Community Business Partnership Grant Program 
d) Wage Subsidy Program 
 
 

6) Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires 7 votes 

a) City of Ely – Iron Range Youth in Action 
 
 
7) Adjournment 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 4 

Approval of the March 31, 2009, Minutes 
 

Meeting of the 
Iron Range Resources Board 

 
Tuesday, March 31, 2009 

6:00 p.m. 
State Capitol – Room 318  

St. Paul, Minnesota 
 

I.  Roll Call 
 
Senator David Tomassoni, Chair, called the meeting to order at approximately 6:04 p.m.  
Present:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Rod Skoe, Senator Yvonne 
Prettner Solon, Citizen Joe Begich.  Absent:  Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Citizen 
Shelley Robinson, Citizen Jack Ryan.  Also present:  Sandy Layman, Commissioner; Brian Hiti, 
Deputy Commissioner; Al Becicka, Assistant Attorney General; Matt Sjoberg, Development 
Strategies Director; Roy Smith, Workforce Development Coordinator; Jean Dolensek, Chief 
Financial Officer; Laureen Hall, Executive Assistant; Sue Collins, President, Northeast Higher 
Education District; Trent Janezich, Director, Arrowhead University Consortium; Terry Leoni, 
General Manager, Virginia Public Utilities. 
 
II. Approval of the February 18, 2008, Minutes 
 
Representative Loren Solberg moved approval of the February 18, 2009, minutes.  Seconded by 
Representative David Dill.  Motion carried. 
 
III. Iron Range Higher Education Account 

Action required:  Approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
 

a. Iron Range Engineering Program – Resolution No. 09-028 
 
Representative Tom Rukavina moved approval of the Iron Range Engineering Program, as 
presented in Resolution No. 09-028.  Seconded by Representative Loren Solberg.  Motion 
carried.   
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, 
Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich,  Representative Loren Solberg,  
Senator Rod Skoe, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe 
Begich  
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 5 

Absent: Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Citizen Shelley Robinson, Citizen Jack 
Ryan  

 
IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 
IRON RANGE HIGHER EDUCATION ACCOUNT EXPENDITURE APPROVAL 

 
Resolution No.: 09-028 
 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes Section 298.28, subd. 9d allocates 5 cents per taxable ton of 
taconite taxes to the agency to be deposited in an Iron Range higher education account (“Higher 
Education Account”) to be used for higher education programs conducted at educational 
institutions in the Taconite Assistance Area designated in Minnesota Statutes Section 297.1341 
(“TAA”); and, 
 
WHEREAS,  Minnesota Statutes Section 298.2214 created the Iron Range Higher Education 
Committee (“Committee”) to advise the commissioner of Iron Range Resources on providing 
higher education programs within the TAA; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 298.28, subd. 9d, both the Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation 
Board (“Board”) and the Committee must approve all expenditures from the Higher Education 
Account; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Committee has approved an expenditure of up to $1,144,700 of the Higher 
Education Account funds to provide a grant to the Northeast Higher Education District (NHED) 
for use by the Arrowhead University Consortium (AUC) to develop a higher education program 
that, in collaboration with private industry, will allow students to earn a bachelors of science in 
engineering degree from Minnesota State University at Mankato (hereafter referred to as the 
“Engineering Degree Program”); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Committee approved expenditure will cover the first year of costs for the 
Engineering Degree Program, for which it is projected that total costs for the development and 
implementation of the Program will be $3,097,852 over the course of four years, and for which it 
is further anticipated that the Program will begin to generate revenues in excess of costs starting 
with the fifth year after it has been implemented; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in order to provide the aforementioned grant to the NHED, it is necessary for the 
Board to approve an expenditure of funds from the Higher Education Account; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Board met in open session at 6:00 p.m. on March 31, 2009, at the State Capitol 
building in St. Paul to consider, among other matters, the proposed expenditure of up to 
$1,144,700 of Higher Education Account funds for the purpose of providing a grant to the 
NHED for use by the AUC to develop an Engineering Degree Program within the TAA and 
determined that the proposed expenditure would be in the public interest. 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 6 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the Board hereby approves the expenditure of 
up to $1,144,700 of Higher Education Account funds for a grant to the NHED to be used by the 
AUC to develop an Engineering Degree Program that, in collaboration with private industry, will 
allow students to earn a bachelors of science in engineering degree from Minnesota State 
University at Mankato. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND 
REHABILITATION BOARD THIS 31st DAY OF MARCH 2009. 
 

Member Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Senator Tom Bakk    X 
Senator Tom Saxhaug    X 
Senator Rod Skoe X    
Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon X    
Senator Dave Tomassoni X    
Representative Tom Anzelc X    
Representative Dave Dill X    
Representative Tom Rukavina X    
Representative Tony Sertich X    
Representative Loren Solberg X    
Citizen Joe Begich X    
Citizen Shelley Robinson    X 
Citizen Jack Ryan    X 
TOTAL 9 0 0 4 

 
Signed:__________________________ 

Senator Dave Tomassoni, Chair 
 
IV. Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 

Action required:  Approval requires 8 votes 
 
a)  Logger Assistance/Hibbing & Virginia Public Utilities Loan Payments –  
Resolution No. 09-029 

 
Representative Tony Sertich moved approval of the Logger Assistance Project, as presented in 
Resolution No. 09-029.  Seconded by Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, 
Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony Sertich,  Representative Loren Solberg,  
Senator Rod Skoe, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, Citizen Joe 
Begich  
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 7 

Absent: Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Citizen Shelley Robinson, Citizen Jack 
Ryan  
 

IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 
OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

HIBBING PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION AND CITY OF VIRGINIA 
FORGIVENESS OF LOAN PAYMENTS DUE THROUGH JANUARY 1, 2010, 

 FOR PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL WOOD BIOMASS FUEL HARVESTED BY 
LOGGING BUSINESSES IN THE TACONITE ASSISTANCE AREA 

 
Resolution No.: 09-029 
 
WHEREAS, the Board by motion on September 23, 2004, approved the expenditure of up to $8 
million of funds from the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund monies made 
available under Minnesota Statutes Sections 298.291-298.294 and Minnesota Statute Section 
298.28, subdivision 11 (“DJJ Funds”) for loans to the Public Utility Commission of Hibbing 
(“HPUC”) and to the City of Virginia for its Department of Public Utilities Commission (“City 
of Virginia” and, jointly, the “Public Entities”) for financial assistance in pursuing projects to 
retrofit and create certain facilities to power their boilers (the “Biomass Project”) using biomass 
materials that are produced locally within the Taconite Assistance Area designated in Minnesota 
Statutes Section 273.1341 (“TAA”); and, 
 
WHEREAS, consistent with such motion, the agency entered into separate loan agreements for 
up to $4 million with the City of Virginia on July 15, 2005, and for up to $4 million with the 
HPUC on July 19, 2005, with provisions requiring installment payments to be paid by the Public 
Entities to the agency throughout the terms of the loans until the loans are repaid in full; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of loan installment payments anticipated to be paid to the agency by 
the Public Entities through January 1, 2010, for deposit into the DJJ Fund operating account is 
$720,000; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that the logging industry in the TAA has been adversely 
impacted by the economic downturn disproportionately more than many other business sectors; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner has proposed that all loan installment payments owed to the 
agency by the Public Entities through January 1, 2010, be forgiven provided that in exchange the 
Public Entities agree to spend all such payment amounts otherwise due to the agency during such 
time period on additional purchases of wood from logging businesses located in the TAA; and 
 
WHEREAS, such loan forgiveness is expected to allow the Public Entities to purchase 
approximately 30,000 additional cords of wood during calendar year 2009 over and above the 
amount of wood that otherwise would be purchased for use in their boilers provided by and 
through the Biomass Project; and, 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 8 

WHEREAS, the Public Entities will purchase all of the 30,000 additional cords of wood no later 
than January 1, 2010; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board met in open session at 6:00 p.m. on March 31, 2009, at the State Capitol 
building in St. Paul to consider, among other matters, the proposal to forgive up to $720,000 in 
loan installment payments owed by the Public Entities through January 1, 2010, in exchange for 
their purchase of additional wood for use in their Biomass Project boilers from logging 
businesses located in the TAA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that the forgiveness of up to $720,000 of 
installment payments on outstanding loans payable to the agency through January 1, 2010, by the 
HPUC and the City of Virginia in exchange for the purchase of 30,000 additional cords of wood 
harvested by logging companies in the TAA no later than January 1, 2010, appears to be in the 
best interests of the TAA and of the agency and is hereby approved. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND 
REHABILITATION BOARD THIS 31st DAY OF MARCH 2009. 
 

Member Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Senator Tom Bakk    X 
Senator Tom Saxhaug    X 
Senator Rod Skoe X    
Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon X    
Senator Dave Tomassoni X    
Representative Tom Anzelc X    
Representative Dave Dill X    
Representative Tom Rukavina X    
Representative Tony Sertich X    
Representative Loren Solberg X    
Citizen Joe Begich X    
Citizen Shelley Robinson    X 
Citizen Jack Ryan    X 
TOTAL 9 0 0 4 

 
Signed:__________________________ 

Senator Dave Tomassoni, Chair 
 
VIII. Adjournment  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 
 

 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 9 

FY10 Agency Investment Plan 
Action Required:  Approval requires 8 votes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Attachments 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 10 

Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 

 
e) Magnetation, Inc.  
f) Greg Cook Logging, Inc.  
g) Community Business Partnership Grant Program 
h) Wage Subsidy Program 

 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 11 

 
 

Magnetation, Inc. 
Direct Loan Program 

 
APPLICANT: 
Magnetation, Inc. 
 
PRINCIPAL(S):  
Larry Lehtinen 
 
BRIEF PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   
Magnetation, Inc. (MI), established in 2006, has further developed and refined a 
proprietary process to recover iron particles from existing natural iron ore and taconite 
tailings basins.  The base technology for this process was initially developed more than 
twenty years ago by Al Fritz, now a retired mining engineer and a co-founder and 
investor in the company.  In June of 2008, the Iron Range Resources board approved 
$2,000,000 of financing to assist MI with the development of its first processing line on a 
parcel of property located near Keewatin that is owned by the company and on which is 
located a natural ore tailings basin.  In October of 2008, the Iron Range Resources board 
approved an additional $1,000,000 of financing for MI to purchase and construct a 
53,450 square-foot fabric building at the Keewatin site.  The building houses the 
processing line, thereby allowing the company to operate on a year round basis.  MI is 
requesting an additional $1,485,000 in financing from Iron Range Resources to acquire, 
refurbish and install four additional magnetic separation wheels, as well as additional 
screens, pumps, piping, conveyors and other mechanical and electrical components, along 
with engineering services.  The proposed project will allow MI to double its capacity to 
approximately 300,000 tons of iron concentrate per year.   
 
PROJECT COST:  $2,985,000 
  
PROJECT BREAKDOWN:   
Iron Range Resources Direct Loan (up to 5 year term, 5.00%) $ 1,485,000 
Equity $ 1,500,000 
Total $ 2,985,000  
 
COLLATERAL:   
The proposed $1,485,000 Direct Loan will be secured with a first-priority position, 
shared pro-rata with the Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic 
Development (DEED), on all collateral on existing loans by Iron Range Resources and 
DEED to Magnetation, Inc. and on the equipment to be purchased with the proposed 
financing. 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 12 

 
Existing collateral consists of: 

1. A real estate mortgage on approximately 150 acres of land and the personal 
property located thereon (tailings).  This parcel contains an estimated 500,000 
tons or more of recoverable iron concentrate. 

2. A lien on all equipment, machinery, furniture, buildings and other tangible 
personal property of MI, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including but 
not limited to all present and future machinery, equipment, furniture, shop 
equipment, office and record keeping equipment, parts and tools and supplies. 

3. All general intangibles of MI, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, 
including, but not limited to, applications for patents, patents, copyrights, 
trademarks, trade secrets, good will, trade names, customers lists, permits and 
franchises, and the right to use Debtor's name. 

 
New collateral includes four additional magnetic separation wheels, as well as additional 
screens, pumps, piping, conveyors and other mechanical and electrical components. 
 
JOBS:   
MI currently employs 22 full-time direct plant employees.  An additional ten (10) 
contract employees work on site doing tailings excavation and finished product trucking.  
The proposed expansion will allow MI to hire two (2) new direct plant employees.  An 
additional ten (10) new contract employees will also be required.     
 
CONTINGENCIES:   
Loan funds will be advanced upon receipt of invoices for the project, including 
machinery and equipment purchases, refurbishing services, materials purchases, 
installation and construction services and professional services. 
 
MI must provide evidence that it has received equity investments in 2009 in the aggregate 
amount of $1,500,000.   
 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
Approved on June 8, 2009. 
 
FUNDING AUTHORIZATION:   
Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund:  This project is authorized under 
the provisions of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund Act 
(Minnesota Statutes sections 298.291-298.298) pertaining to expenditures of Douglas J. 
Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund monies for economic development projects in 
that these statutes authorize small business development loans to private enterprises for 
the purposes of job creation and economic development within the Taconite Assistance 
Area defined in Minnesota Statutes Section 273.1341.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Magnetation, Inc. (MI), established in 2006, has further developed and refined a proprietary 
process to recover iron particles from existing natural iron ore and taconite tailings basins.  The 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 13 

base technology for this process was initially developed more than twenty years ago by Al Fritz, 
now a retired mining engineer and a co-founder and investor in the company.  In June of 2008, 
the Iron Range Resources board approved $2,000,000 of financing to assist MI with the 
development of its first processing line on a parcel of property located near Keewatin that is 
owned by the company and on which is located a natural ore tailings basin.  In October of 2008, 
the Iron Range Resources board approved an additional $1,000,000 of financing for MI to 
purchase and construct a 53,450 square-foot fabric building at the Keewatin site.  The building 
houses the processing line, thereby allowing the company to operate on a year-round basis.  MI 
is requesting an additional $1,485,000 in financing from Iron Range Resources to acquire, 
refurbish and install four additional magnetic separation wheels, as well as add additional 
screens, pumps, piping, conveyors and other mechanical and electrical components, along with 
engineering services.  The proposed project will allow MI to double its capacity to 
approximately 300,000 tons of iron concentrate per year.   
 
MANAGEMENT TEAM: 
Chairman of the Board and CEO is Larry Lehtinen.  He joined MI in early 2008 when he became 
an investor in the company.  Mr. Lehtinen has over 30 years of mining industry experience while 
holding a variety of engineering and administrative positions with Inland Steel, Cleveland Cliffs, 
and Steel Dynamics.  He also was instrumental in the development of the Mesabi Nugget project 
where he continues to serve as an independent consultant.  He also has patented three mining 
related processes.  Mr. Lehtinen holds a minerals engineering degree from the University of 
Minnesota and a Masters of Business Administration from the University of Minnesota Duluth.  
Mr. Lehtinen owns approximately 51% of the outstanding stock of the company. 
 
David Chappie joined MI in September of 2008 as its Vice President – Operations and 
Engineering, and is also a shareholder and a director.  Prior to joining MI, Mr. Chappie was the 
General Manager of Republic Metals, Inc. of Canton Ohio (2006 - 2008), a specialty metals 
manufacturer.  Mr. Chappie also worked in various technical engineering positions with Steel 
Dynamics, Inc. from 1987 to 2006, including time as a technical advisor for the Mesabi Nugget 
project in Silver Bay and Hoyt Lakes.  Mr. Chappie is a 1987 graduate of the University of 
Dayton in Ohio with a degree in electrical engineering. 
 
Al Fritz, the co-founder of MI and the inventor of the Ferrous Wheel magnetic separation 
process and machinery, serves as President.  Mr. Fritz is a retired mining engineer who spent 
much of his career in natural ore mining and processing.   
 
Other management team members and investors include Rod Hunt, a retired entrepreneur, who, 
among other things, has mined precious metals in Alaska; Tom Hammerlund, Sr., owner of 
Hammerlund Construction and various other affiliated companies, and Eugene Bergstrom, a 
retired employee of Otis Elevators.  Ed Shaughnessy, a shareholder and early promoter of MI, 
currently provides construction and maintenance services to MI. 
 
MARKET OPPORTUNITY: 
For nearly 100 years there has been mining on the Mesabi Iron Range, first to process the rich 
natural ore and more recently to process the lower grade taconite ore.  As part of the mining 
process, the ore is concentrated and the unwanted materials, or tailings, are taken out of the 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 14 

process and transported to very large impoundment basins, where they are stored, and essentially 
abandoned.  There are still weakly magnetic iron particles within the tailings, but the process to 
recover those units has historically not been economical due to their relatively low market value 
in comparison to the cost of recovering them.  With the increase in iron unit pricing over the past 
several years, combined with advancing technology, it is now economically feasible to begin 
reclaiming the iron units from the numerous tailings basins in northeastern Minnesota. 
 
The patent pending process used by MI to reclaim and concentrate the iron units remaining in the 
region’s numerous tailing basins is working as well, or better, than originally projected.  Since 
the start up of the processing line in early February, MI has been able to meet the specifications 
of its customer in regard to both iron and silica content.  Concentrate processing is now ongoing, 
with weekly deliveries to its customer. 
 
Mr. Lehtinen considers MI to be the lowest cost producer of iron concentrate in the United 
States.  This is possible because MI uses tailings, which have already been crushed and partially 
processed, as its raw material rather than raw ore or taconite which would require extensive 
processing prior to the separation process.   
 
Mr. Lehtinen has estimated that there are in excess of 100 million tons of natural ore and taconite 
tailings stored in basins on the Mesabi Iron Range.  Given this, and assuming the market for iron 
concentrate stabilizes and grows, MI could be a long term processer in the region and/or its 
process could be licensed to other producers both regionally and in other parts of the world. 
 
At this time, MI is producing concentrate for just one customer (Mesabi Nugget) and expects to 
supply approximately 110,000 tons to them in 2009.  There are no firm commitments beyond 
2009; however, Mr. Lehtinen feels they will continue as a customer in 2010, and possibly longer.  
MI also is pursuing other niche markets where its product could be used in such things as water 
treatment, chemical manufacturing, oil and gas drilling, asphalt paving, glass coloring and as a 
weighting agent for construction.   
 
Magnetation has secured the services of several experienced independent sales professionals to 
seek out contracts with both steel and non-metallurgical markets.   
 
COLLATERAL REVIEW: 
The proposed $1,485,000 Direct Loan will be secured with a first-priority position, shared pro-
rata with the Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development (DEED), on all 
collateral on existing loans by Iron Range Resources and DEED to Magnetation, Inc. and on the 
equipment to be purchased with the proposed financing. 
 
Existing collateral consists of: 

1. A real estate mortgage on approximately 150 acres of land and the personal property 
located thereon (tailings).  This parcel contains an estimated 500,000 tons or more of 
recoverable iron concentrate. 

2. A lien on all equipment, machinery, furniture, buildings and other tangible personal 
property of MI, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including but not limited to all 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 15 

present and future machinery, equipment, furniture, shop equipment, office and record 
keeping equipment, parts and tools and supplies. 

3. All general intangibles of MI, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including, but 
not limited to, applications for patents, patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, 
good will, trade names, customers lists, permits and franchises, and the right to use 
Debtor's name. 

 
New collateral includes four additional magnetic separation wheels, as well as additional screens, 
pumps, piping, conveyors and other mechanical and electrical components. 
 
PAST IRON RANGE RESOURCES HISTORY: 
Iron Range Resources has the following loans outstanding to MI: 
 
Direct Loan A - 3.0%, Interest Quarterly, Matures 12/31/2011 $    997,776 
Direct Loan B - 20.0%, Interest Quarterly, Matures 12/31/2013 $ 1,000,000 
Direct Loan C - 3.00%, Interest Quarterly, Matures 12/31/2013    $ 1,000,000 
 
Per our agreement with MI, Iron Range Resources receives a Royalty of $1.50 per ton on each 
ton of concentrate produced and shipped on the first 5,000,000 tons, and $1.00 per ton thereafter 
with no volume, time or dollar limitations.  Of that, $0.75 per ton is applied to reduce the 
principal of Direct Loan A.   



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 16 

 
Greg Cook Logging, Inc. 
Bank Participation Loan Program 

 
APPLICANT: 
Greg Cook Logging, Inc., located in Big Fork. 
 
PRINCIPAL(S):  
Clinton Cook is the owner of Greg Cook Logging, Inc. 
 
BRIEF PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   
Purchase a slasher/loader to support the company's expansion into the production of 
biomass. 
 
PROJECT COST:   
$224,000  
 
PROJECT BREAKDOWN:   
Ultima Bank Minnesota loan $84,000 
Iron Range Resources Bank Participation Loan $84,000 
Minnesota Department of Labor & Industry grant $10,000 
Owner cash equity $46,000  
Total                                                                                                                      $224,000 
 
COLLATERAL:   
Barko 495 log loader mounted on a Savage self-propelled carrier unit with a HanFab 
slasher unit.  Total unit is valued at $224,000. 
 
JOBS:   
The increase in production and safety realized through the use of this equipment will 
enable the company to retain its 10 employees in this depressed time in the industry. 
 
CONTINGENCIES:   
None.  Other required financing has been committed. 
 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
 Approved on June 8, 2009. 
 
FUNDING AUTHORIZATION:   
Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund:  This project is authorized under 
the provisions of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund Act 
(Minnesota Statutes sections 298.291-298.298) pertaining to expenditures of Douglas J. 
Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund monies for economic development projects in 
that these statutes authorize small business development loans to private enterprises for 
the purposes of job creation and economic development within the Taconite Assistance 
Area defined in Minnesota Statutes Section 273.1341.   



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 17 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The proceeds of this loan will be used to finance the purchase of a new Barko 495 log loader on 
a Savage self-propelled carrier unit with a HanFab slasher unit.  This equipment will support the 
company’s expansion into the biomass market. 
 
The company is also the recipient of a Minnesota Department of Labor & Industry Safety Grant 
of $10,000 which will be used to fund a portion of this project. 
 
MANAGEMENT TEAM: 
Greg Cook Logging, Inc. was started in the 1970’s.  The company was incorporated in 1993 and 
Clinton Cook began working in the business with his father.  Clinton acquired the company in 
2007 and operates it with his wife, Tracy and his sister, Renee.  Clinton, Tracy and Renee are 
employed by affiliate Third Generation Logging Company (owned by Clinton) and Greg Cook 
Logging is billed for management services. 
 
MARKET OPPORTUNITY: 
Greg Cook Logging, Inc. has secured a contract with Laurentian Energy Authority to supply 
wood chips for use in the Hibbing and Virginia Public Utilities operations.  The company also 
provides product to other local and regional markets. 
 
COLLATERAL REVIEW: 
The equipment to be purchased has a value of $224,000.  The $168,000 loan will have a 75% 
loan-to-value and a first-secured position on the equipment.  The equipment is standard 
equipment for many logging operations. 
 
PAST IRON RANGE RESOURCES HISTORY: 
None. 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 18 

Community Business Partnership Grant Program 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Iron Range Resources Board  
 
From: Sandy Layman 

Commissioner 
  
Date: June 18, 2009 
 
Re: COMMUNITY BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP GRANT PROGRAM FY09 
 
 
The Iron Range Resources Board approved $450,000 for the Community Business Partnership 
Grant Program in the FY09 budget under the provisions of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic 
Protection Trust Fund.  I propose funding 18 municipalities with grants from Iron Range 
Resources.  These grants will be used to make low interest loans to eligible businesses for 
building renovations and/or expansions.   
 
PRIVATE SOURCES OF FINANCING: 
The borrower’s participation in the project and the loan repayments to the municipality are the 
private source of financing for this program. 
 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   
Approved on June 8, 2009. 
 
FUNDING AUTHORIZATION: 
$450,000 in funding for the Community Business Partnership Grant Program was approved in 
the FY09 budget, under the authority of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 
Act, Minn. Stat. Sec. 298.292, subd. 2 (1) (2008). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Based upon the budget line item of $450,000, staff recommends grant amounts to 18 
municipalities as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 19 

 
 
City/    Amount  Minimum  Minimum Total 
Township   Recommended Match Required Loan Fund 
  

Aitkin, City of   $  50,000  $  25,000  $  75,000 

Biwabik, City of  $  20,000  $  10,000  $  30,000 

Bovey, City of   $  30,000  $  15,000  $  45,000 

Chisholm, City of  $  25,000  $  12,500  $  37,500 

Cohasset, City of  $  20,000  $  10,000  $  30,000 

Coleraine, City of  $  20,000  $  10,000  $  30,000 

Crystal Bay Township $  20,000  $  10,000  $  30,000 

Ely, City of   $  25,000  $  12,500  $  37,500 

Eveleth, City of  $  20,000  $  10,000  $  30,000 

Grand Marais, City of  $  25,000  $  12,500  $  37,500 

Hibbing, City of  $  50,000  $  25,000  $  75,000 

Keewatin, City of  $  12,000  $    6,000  $  18,000 

Mt. Iron, City of  $  25,000  $  12,500  $  37,500 

Nashwauk, City of  $  25,000  $  12,500  $  37,500 

Silver Bay, City of  $  25,000  $  12,500  $  37,500 

Squaw Lake, City of  $    8,000  $    4,000  $  12,000 

Tower, City of   $  30,000  $  15,000  $  45,000 

Two Harbors, City of  $  20,000  $  10,000  $  30,000 
 
Total    $450,000  $225,000  $675,000  



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 20 

Wage Subsidy Program 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Iron Range Resources Board  
  
From: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner  
 
Date: June 18, 2009 
 
Re: IRON RANGE RESOURCES WAGE SUBSIDY PROGRAM 
 
 
Laws of Minnesota for 2009, Chapter 78, Article 7, authorized the transfer of $1 million of net 
interest, dividends and other earnings from the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust 
Fund, for fiscal years 2010 and 2011 only, into a special account that may be used for wage 
subsidies of up to $5 per hour to qualified businesses.  I propose implementing a new wage 
subsidy program with funds from this account in fiscal year 2010 using the following criteria: 

 
• Eligible establishments are to include those headquartered within the TAA, which have been 

operating for at least one year immediately prior to application, classified in one of the 
following industries:  manufacturing; wholesale trade; retail trade; transportation and 
warehousing; finance and insurance; professional and technical services; and management of 
companies and enterprises. 

 
• Any establishment with employees on active layoff status would be ineligible to participate 

in the program. 
 

• Establishments would be entitled to a wage subsidy that amounts to the lesser of $5/hour or 
50% of an eligible new employee’s wage for up to six months or $5,000 per employee, 
whichever occurs first. 

 
• A single establishment would be eligible to enroll a maximum of five employees in the 

program. 
 

It is the intent of the Agency to partner with the Northeast Minnesota Workforce Center system 
and AEOA to administer the program, with any administrative costs being funded out of the 
account. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 21 

 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Approved on June 8, 2009. 
 
FUNDING AUTHORIZATION: 
Funding for the Wage Subsidy Program is available within a special account in the Douglas J. 
Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund Act, Minn. Stat. Sec. 298.292, and, under Minnesota 
Statutes 298.294(b), can be authorized for the proposed Program, upon approval by at least seven 
Iron Range Resources Board members. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the proposed program as presented.  
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 22 

Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires 7 votes 

 
a) City of Ely – Iron Range Youth in Action 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 18, 2009 

Page 23 

City of Ely – Iron Range Youth in Action 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Iron Range Resources Board 
  
From: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
Date: June 18, 2009 
 
Re: REALLOCATION OF $40,258 FROM THE CITY OF CHISHOLM TO THE 

CITY OF ELY FOR THE IRON RANGE YOUTH IN ACTION PROJECT 
 

On September 6, 2007, the Iron Range Resources Board approved, under the FY08 Public Works 
Program, three $50,000 grants for Iron Range Youth in Action (IRYA) community development 
projects in Chisholm, Cook and Ely.  The city of Chisholm has completed its IRYA project and 
did not need to use $40,258 of its $50,000 grant and is in favor of allowing those funds to be 
used for the Ely project, which is in need of additional funding.   

The Ely IRYA project has an estimated construction cost of $400,000 for a new youth facility 
and is near completion. Nearly 95% of the labor has been donated.  Not including labor costs, the 
Ely IRYA needs an additional $50,000 to pay for flooring, counter tops, plumbing, electrical, 
sinks and other internal construction. Iron Range Resources has received a new Public Works 
application to support the expenditure of the additional funds. 





FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 2 

FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Table of Contents 

 
INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

MISSION ....................................................................................................................................................... 3 
VISION .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 
FY09 HIGHLIGHTS .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

INVESTMENT PLAN ................................................................................................................................ 10 

AGENCY BUDGET .......................................................................................................................................... 10 
REVENUES ................................................................................................................................................... 11 
EXPENDITURES ............................................................................................................................................. 12 
FUNDING SOURCES ....................................................................................................................................... 13 

OPERATIONS .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION ................................................................................................................ 14 
Administrative Services Operations Budget ........................................................................................ 15 

HUMAN RESOURCES & STRATEGIC RESULTS DIVISION .......................................................................................... 16 
Human Resources & Strategic Results Operations Budget ................................................................. 16 

LEGAL SERVICES............................................................................................................................................ 17 
MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION ..................................................................................................... 18 

Marketing & Communications Operations Budget ............................................................................. 18 
GIANTS RIDGE GOLF & SKI RESORT .................................................................................................................. 19 

Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations Budget ............................................................................. 20 
MINNESOTA DISCOVERY CENTER ..................................................................................................................... 21 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION ............................................................................................................. 22 

Community Development Operations Budget .................................................................................... 22 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DIVISION .................................................................................................................. 23 

Business Development Operations Budget ......................................................................................... 24 

PROGRAMS ............................................................................................................................................ 26 

GRANTS ...................................................................................................................................................... 26 
Community Readiness ......................................................................................................................... 26 
Mining and Mineland Reclamation ..................................................................................................... 27 
Commissioner Program ....................................................................................................................... 28 
Culture and Tourism ............................................................................................................................ 28 
Application Fund ................................................................................................................................. 28 
Region III ............................................................................................................................................. 28 
Programs Budget ................................................................................................................................ 29 

PROJECTS ............................................................................................................................................... 30 

Business Development ........................................................................................................................ 30 
2009 Legislative Initiatives .................................................................................................................. 30 
Projects Budget ................................................................................................................................... 31 

SPECIALLY DESIGNATED FUNDS ............................................................................................................. 32 

APPENDIX .............................................................................................................................................. 33 

APPENDIX A  ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ............................................................................................................. 33 

 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 3 

Introduction 

Mission  
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 4 

Vision  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 5 

 

FY09 Highlights  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 6 

 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 7 

 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 8 

 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 9 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 10 

Investment Plan 

Agency Budget  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 11 

Revenues   
$53.6 M 

 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 12 

Expenditures   
$44.8 M 

 

 

 
 

 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 13 

Funding Sources   
$44.8 M 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 14 

Operations 

Administrative Services Division 
 
Purpose of the division:  The Administrative Services division provides support services 
and resources to other agency programs and facilities.  The division is comprised of 
Finance, Information Systems and Maintenance & Shop.  The budget of this division also 
includes the Office of the Commissioner.  
 
How we do our work:  Division staff members provide numerous services including all 
aspects of budgeting, accounting, financial reporting, purchasing and contracting.  Staff 
also support and maintain the computer hardware, data and telecommunication 
infrastructure for the agency.  Other duties include equipment maintenance, fleet 
management and building/grounds maintenance.   
 
Key Business Objectives for FY10  
 

• Implement “green” initiatives in recycling, power management and energy 
conservation. 
 

• Produce accurate and timely financial reports 
 

• Provide timely accounting, purchasing and contracting services  
 

• Upgrade the agency’s network system security  
 

• Safely operate and maintain the Eveleth facility and plan a heating/cooling system 
upgrade   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 15 

Administrative Services Operations Budget 
 

Finance  FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs $999,560 $990,731 $861,415 
Operational Costs $170,200 $126,535 $148,100 
 Training and travel 49,500 53,569 49,500 
 Supplies  26,500 19,426 26,500 
 Purchased services  10,000 6,482 10,000 
 Telephone and postage 47,500 29,277 47,500 
 Equipment, rental and leases 36,700 17,781 14,600 
State Indirect Costs $95,000 $91,984 $81,700 
Human Resources $363,200 $237,063 $01

Total  
 

$1,627,960 $1,446,313 $1,091,215 
 
 

Information Systems FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs $155,270 $149,968 $159,489 
Operational Costs $303,200 $235,813 $256,600 
 Maintenance and network services 66,200 57,525 79,200 
 Hardware, software and support 150,500 111,342 98,400 
 Supplies 73,500 48,827 60,000 
 Training and travel 13,000 18,119 19,000 
Total  $458,470 $385,781 $416,089 
 
 

Maintenance & Shop FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs $208,381 $205,777 $214,349 
Building & Grounds 228,240 136,897 149,340 
Equipment Repair 130,740 127,612 126,840 
Total  $567,361 $470,286 $490,529 
 
 

                                                 
1 In FY10, the budget for Human Resources was moved to Human Resources & Strategic Results. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 16 

Human Resources & Strategic Results Division 
 
Purpose of the division:  The Human Resources & Strategic Results division guides and 
manages all human resources services, policies and programs for the agency.  
Additionally, the division coordinates HR efforts with organizational development goals 
by managing the agency’s strategic planning, performance and improvement plans.  
 
How we do our work:  Division staff members direct recruiting and staffing, 
compliance, employee orientation, development and training, policy development and 
documentation, employee relations, compensation and benefits administration and labor 
relations. Staff also oversee performance management, organizational development and 
strategic planning.   
 
Key Business Objectives for FY10  
 

• Utilize technology to complete Business Impact Analysis and emergency 
planning 
 

• Incorporate LEAN process improvement into information management agency-
wide. 
 

• Reduce lost time and workers compensation costs  
 

• Benchmark HR activities to ensure compliance and best practice 
 

• Promote the safety and well being of all staff 
 
 
Human Resources & Strategic Results Operations Budget 
 

Human Resources &  
Strategic Results   

FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs $0 $0 $341,598 
Retirement Insurance $0 $0 $89,772 
Unemployment $0 $0 $100,000 
Workers Compensation $0 $0 $148,000 
Operational Costs $0 $0 $30,700 

Training and travel 0 0 13,700 
Purchased & professional services 0 0 15,000 
Supplies 0 0 2,000 

Total  $0 $0 $710,0702

 

 

 

                                                 
2 In FY10, Human Resources & Strategic Results is a new operations budget. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 17 

Legal Services 
 
The Attorney General’s Office provides legal services to the agency and the Board in 
support of all agency activities. 
 
Two assistant attorneys general and one legal assistant provide the Commissioner, agency 
staff and the Board with counsel on legal matters, including statutory interpretation, 
drafting or interpretation of legal documents, drafting of legislative language and defense 
of the agency or Board in litigation.   
 

Legal Services FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Legal Services $374,238 $290,968 $376,121 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 18 

Marketing & Communications Division 
 
Purpose of the division: The Marketing & Communications division develops, 
coordinates and disseminates marketing, promotional and communications materials on 
behalf of Iron Range Resources and its stakeholders.  
 
How we do our work:  Working as a team, division staff members create and distribute 
internal and external agency communications, manage the agency website, provide 
writing and design services and provide staff support for special events and strategic 
initiatives. 
 
Key Business Objectives for FY10  
 
• Maintain and enhance all agency communications both internal and external 

including the RangeView, board member briefings, agency website(s), RangeViews 
by Lee, the Water Cooler, and others. 

• Respond to all media inquiries and data practices requests related to the agency’s 
activities and its programs 

• Market the region by developing business recruitment strategies, identifying media 
opportunities, and promoting the region through additional venues 

• Expand web site capacity for e-business   
 
• Initiate and maximize partnerships to enhance the region and the agency’s image 
 
• Launch intranet electronic communications  
 
 
Marketing & Communications Operations Budget 
 

Marketing & Communications  FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs $583,697 $569,206 $520,7993

Operational Costs 
 

$689,120 $549,440 $434,360 
            Printing 114,000 40,455 58,000 
            Advertising 204,000 230,956 250,000 
 Professional services 291,000 220,616 63,000 
 Purchased services 26,000 17,118 18,500 
 Training, travel and supplies  54,120 40,295 44,860 
Total  $1,272,817 $1,118,646 $955,159 
 

                                                 
3 In FY10, one position (Tourism Coordinator) transferred to the Community Development budget. 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 19 

Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort 
 
Purpose of the division:  Giants Ridge Golf and Ski Resort operates a quality 
recreational golf and ski facility and offers private-sector opportunities for property and 
real estate development.  
 
How we do our work:  Giants Ridge operates 36 holes of championship golf and a 
winter sports area that attracts over 130,000 guests annually.  In addition, the Giants 
Ridge recreation area is comprised of 10,000 acres of land of which Iron Range 
Resources owns 1,600 acres.  A Master Plan for the Giants Ridge area was built on the 
premise that the agency will focus on oversight and land sales to private parties who will 
drive future development.  The plan serves as the blueprint for residential and 
commercial growth. 
                                           
Key Business Objectives for FY10  
 

• Operate and maintain two quality golf courses and a ski area that enhance 
economic impacts on the Iron Range 

 
• Maximize golf and ski revenues through strategic pricing and packaging 

 
• Transfer power of the Master Association to its membership 

 
• Implement a “Resort Fee” that includes resort lodging partners 

 
• Commission a new chalet design and engineering plan  

 
• Safely operate and maintain the Giants Ridge facilities and continue to implement 

improvements 
 

• Develop and update online marketing strategy 
 

• Package promotions to increase mid-week revenues   
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 20 

Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations Budget 
 

                                                 
4 In FY10, a one-half time position (Real Property Coordinator) transferred to the Community 
Development budget. 
5 Golf and food & beverage operating expenses. 

Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Revenues    
Admissions $3,114,867 $2,671,884 $2,901,410 
Advertising & Marketing Sales 64,603 44,665 59,550 
Commissions 17,687 19,616 18,657 
Facility Rental 139,502 138,821 134,237 
Retail Sales 1,272,064 1,098,158 1,190,139 
Equipment Rental 200 1,815 200 
Miscellaneous Revenue 206,217 192,749 135,641 
Total Revenues $4,815,140 $4,167,708 $4,439,834 
    
Expenses    
Salaries & Benefits $1,447,538 $1,417,725 $1,454,6004

Utilities 
 

281,414 283,545 289,265 
Advertising & Marketing 361,740 371,015 337,890 
Communications 125,443 130,987 123,900 
General & Administrative 5,001 1,543 15,601 
Equipment Rental 128,936 112,175 295,530 
Management Fees 77,592 77,979 79,920 
Professional Services 63,765 55,354 63,765 
Management Expenses5 3,067,755  2,675,945 3,021,166 
Other Professional Services 110,000 52,000 90,000 
Insurance 100,663 94,085 94,082 
Maintenance & Repairs 160,040 102,820 59,280 
Supplies 220,040 192,392 251,700 
Travel 5,000 4,962 4,075 
Other Operational Costs 215,859 189,646 194,386 
Total Operational Expenses $6,370,786 $5,762,173 $6,375,160 
    
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenses ($1,555,646) ($1,594,465) ($1,935,326) 
    
Non Operational Expenses    
Equipment $232,000 $137,746 $388,000 
Capital Improvements / Leases / Grants 754,277 750,216 275,277 
Debt Service  1,568,628 1,550,339 1,572,033 
Total Non Operational Expenses $2,554,905 $2,438,301 $2,235,310 
    
Total Expenditures $8,925,691 $8,200,474 $8,610,470 
    
Budget Surplus (Shortage) ($4,110,551) ($4,032,766) ($4,170,636) 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 21 

Minnesota Discovery Center  
 
The nonprofit Ironworld Development Corporation (IDC) manages the agency’s facilities 
at Minnesota Discovery Center under a Sublease/Management Agreement. IDC’s mission 
is to “collect, preserve, interpret and promote the history and cultural heritage of 
northeastern Minnesota; and to manage, promote, sustain and develop the assets of 
Ironworld for the long-term benefit of area residents and visitors.” 
 
The Sublease/Management Agreement provides an annual operating subsidy that declines 
by 20% per year over a ten-year period, the interest on a $10 million dollar endowment 
and a $250,000 challenge grant for endowment fund raising. In addition to this financial 
support, the agency budgets for insurance and capital repairs.     
   
 

Minnesota Discovery Center  FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

IDC Operating  $1,511,0006 $1,511,000  $1,009,000 
Endowment Challenge Match 250,000 0 250,000 
Building Insurance  39,000 39,553 39,200 
Building Capital Improvements  100,000 55,593 100,000 
Total  $1,900,000 $1,606,146 $1,398,200 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
6 In FY09, this line item was increased $250,000 for a leadership grant to IDC, which provided money for 
supplemental expenses including marketing and fundraising. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 22 

Community Development Division 
 

Purpose of the division:  The Community Development division invests in communities 
through grant making based on criteria which include economic impact, job creation or 
retention, leverage, removing barriers to growth, readiness and need.  The division 
provides technical assistance for the development of renewable energy in communities, 
development at Giants Ridge, Laurentian Vision Partnership, and Range Readiness.  
 
How we do our work:  The division assists communities by providing infrastructure 
financing for business and housing development and funding for property redevelopment. 
Grant programs are offered to stimulate community development through tourism, 
innovation, and removal of barriers to growth. Special projects and initiatives are tied to 
development at Giants Ridge, sustainable mining practices for future land use and 
renewable energy.  
 
Key Business Objectives for FY10  
 

• Participate in the green business economy 
 

• Promote community sustainability 
 

• Identify opportunities for renewable energy participation 
 

• Align grant programs and services with community development needs 
 

• Leverage agency funds used for community development  
 
 
Community Development Operations Budget 
 

Community Development FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $0 $0 $396,2397

Operational Costs 
 

$0 $0 $110,000 
            Training and travel 0 0 10,000 
 Professional services 0 0 88,000 
 Print and advertising 0 0 12,000 
Total  $0 $0 $506,2398

 
 

 
 

                                                 
7 In FY10, the Community Development team is comprised of three positions transferred from the 
following budgets: Marketing & Communications, Business Development & Recruitment, Mining & 
Mineland Reclamation (50% position), and Giants Ridge (50% position). 
8 In FY10, Community Development is a new operations budget. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 23 

Business Development Division 
 

Purpose of the division:  The Business Development division manages agency deal 
flow, provides financial assistance to businesses, and improves the physical landscape 
impacted by mining activities within the Taconite Assistance Area.  The division consists 
of Business Development & Recruitment and Mining & Mineland Reclamation.  The 
budget of this division also includes the Residential Redevelopment9

 
 operations.   

How we do our work:  Division staff members generate business leads and provide 
financial support to new and existing businesses, as well as assistance to communities. 
Special projects and initiatives tied to energy and workforce are also undertaken.  Other 
activities include insuring the long-term utilization of Minnesota’s mineral resources and 
undertaking reclamation planning efforts.  
 
Key Business Objectives for FY10  
 

• Identify business opportunities 
 

• Operate the Residential Redevelopment Program to remove blight in communities 
 

• Implement a targeted business recruitment plan 
 

• Adapt our education and training programs to provide business and industry with 
access to a workforce that assures continued competitiveness in a changing world-
wide marketplace 
 

• Engage partnerships to realize the potential, readiness and availability of the 
workforce needed to capitalize on economic development opportunities  
 

• Assist existing businesses and tracking job creation and retention  
 

• Influence mining processes to create enhanced post mining landscapes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
9 Residential Redevelopment was formerly known as Building Demolition. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 24 

Business Development Operations Budget 
 

Business Development & Recruitment FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $832,364 $672,21710 $655,396 11

Operational Costs 
 

$314,740 $178,661 $340,740 
            Training and travel 57,200 32,853 43,200 
 Professional services 177,800 93,81812 192,000  
 Purchased services 26,200 20,247 53,400 
 Memberships 15,000 15,105 18,000 
 Supplies, telephone and equipment 22,100 11,078 12,700 
 Utilities and maintenance  16,440 5,560 21,440 
Total  $1,147,104 $850,878 $996,136 
 
 

Strategic Results & Workforce  FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $245,249 $242,352 $0 
Operational Costs $30,200 $8,570 $0 
            Training and travel 15,100 6,381 0 
 Professional services 10,800 0 0 
 Memberships 300 75 0 
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  4,000 2,114 0 
Total  $275,449 $250,922 $013

 
 

 
Workforce  FY 2009 

Budget 
FY 2009 

Projected 
FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $0 $0 $45,891 
Operational Costs $0 $0 $14,000 
            Training and travel 0 0 9,000 
 Professional services 0 0 5,000 
Total  $0 $0 $59,89114

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
10 In FY09, three budget positions (Community Development Director, Loan Officer, Administrative 
Assistant) were not filled. 
11 In FY10, one position (Community Development Representative) transferred to the Community 
Development budget. 
12 In FY09, an additional $50,000 is projected to be spent under this line item for business development 
recruitment services prior to June 30, 2009. 
13 In FY10, the budget for Strategic Results & Workforce was moved to the following new budgets:  
Workforce and Human Resources & Strategic Results. 
14 In FY10, Workforce is a new operations budget. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 25 

Mining & Mineland Reclamation  FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $340,453 $328,337 $289,38215

Operational Costs 
 

$112,790 $77,674 $106,905 
            Training and travel 6,100 4,228 4,050 
 Purchased services 5,200 2,815 2,600 
 Memberships 10,750 6,584 7,700 
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  29,260 21,346 44,765 
 Utilities and maintenance  61,480 42,701 47,790 
Total  $453,243 $406,011 $396,287 

 
Residential Redevelopment16 FY 2009   

Budget 
FY 2009 

Projected 
FY 2010 
Budget 

Employee Costs  $134,287 $135,494 $127,630 
Operational Costs $99,100 $73,073 $53,500 
            Training and travel 500 474 500 
 Purchased services 500 173 200 
 Supplies, telephone and equipment  95,100 71,500 49,800 
 Utilities and maintenance  3,000 925 3,000 
Total  $233,38717 $208,567  $181,130 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
15 In FY10, a one-half time position (Laurentian Vision Coordinator) transferred to the Community 
Development budget. 
16 Residential Redevelopment was formerly known as Building Demolition. 
17 In FY09, $34,000 was transferred from the Public Works line item to Residential Redevelopment to fund 
operations for one additional month in 2008. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 26 

Programs  

Grants 
 
Iron Range Resources is one of the region’s largest grant makers to units of government, 
nonprofits, higher education and businesses. This budget demonstrates an on-going 
commitment to grant making as a tool to foster community growth and stimulate 
economic and cultural activity.      
 
Grants include both competitive and noncompetitive application reviews. A competitive 
process involves a cycle with a call for proposals, an application deadline and published 
evaluation criteria. In the noncompetitive process, applications are received throughout 
the year and are individually evaluated using broader, general criteria.  
 
Program descriptions and allocations are detailed below. In accordance with M.S. 298.22, 
Subd.11, the Commissioner will not bring specific grant projects back to the Iron Range 
Resources Board for approval.  
 
Community Readiness  $1,450,000 
 

Commercial Redevelopment  $1,000,000 (Competitive) 
Designated for cities or townships for the demolition and removal of commercial 
structures that make way for new development or new business. Competitive 
grants of up to $50,000 per building with a maximum of $150,000 per grantee are 
available. 
 
Workforce Development  $400,000  
Grants assist in workforce development by funding programs from industry, 
industry clusters, schools or collaborative partners that build capacity, 
responsiveness or innovation to address workforce needs.  Funding is also 
available for secondary and post secondary educational institutions to develop and 
deliver curriculum that prepares students for a seamless transition from high 
school or post secondary education to the workforce.  
 
Range Readiness  $50,000 
These grants are targeted for a coordinated regional readiness response to the 
large scale industry expansions and their attendant impacts on workforce, 
employment, housing, education, recreation and other socio-economic issues. An 
on-going communications effort will be sustained to coordinate and share 
information with communities and other stakeholders as these evolving projects 
unfold. This initiative identifies potential challenges, issues and opportunities, 
develops shared strategies and solutions; and, focuses the appropriate financial 
and technical resources in an effective response.  In light of current economic 
conditions, which may slow progress on certain major projects, funding for this 
activity has been reduced. 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 27 

Mining and Mineland Reclamation  $490,000 
 
Mineland Reclamation and Restoration  $285,000  
Grants in this category are for reclaiming, restoring and enhancing eligible areas 
of the Taconite Assistance Area adversely affected by past mining activities.  
Local units of government, reclamation committees and county mine inspectors 
may submit projects for competitive review and consideration.  Proposed FY10 
projects are:   
 

Fish Stocking  $15,000 
In partnership with the DNR Division of Fisheries, the Mineland 
Reclamation program operates a cooperative program to stock fish in a 
number of water-filled, abandoned mine pits across the region from Ely to 
Crosby-Ironton.  Iron Range Resources stocks pits on the Mesabi Range 
where campground and public access construction has been funded by the 
agency. Rainbow trout are stocked during the spring and fall at the 
following locations: St. James Pit, Aurora; Lake Ore-be-Gone, Gilbert; 
Mott Pit, Mountain Iron; Kinney Pit, Kinney; Judson Pit, Buhl; and La 
Rue Pit, Nashwauk. 

 
 Emergency Safety Projects  $20,000 

The St. Louis County Mine Inspector’s office monitors and inspects 
abandoned mine areas to address safety issues and emergencies. In FY09, 
activities included capping of two shafts at the Milford Mine. 

 
 Wetland Mitigation Banking Cooperative  $250,000 
 Northeastern Minnesota has more than 80% of its pre-settlement wetlands 

still intact and functioning. Consequently, it is becoming difficult to 
mitigate wetland issues for new or expanding economic development 
opportunities.  The Wetland Mitigation Banking Cooperative’s primary 
goal is to establish and ensure a self-sustaining, positive balance of 
wetland mitigation credits for use in northeastern Minnesota.  In FY10, 
funding will be used to cover the initial costs of establishing and operating 
the cooperative. 

 
Motion by Representative Rukavina that the expenditure of $250,000 for the Wetland Mitigation 
Banking Cooperative is eliminated and the funds are re-allocated for two new line item categories 
as follows: 
 
1) Non-Ferrous Taxation Study.  Up to $125,000 is budgeted for a taxation study by the Natural 
Resources Research Institute of the growing non-ferrous mining industry within the state; and 
 
2) Other Reclamation and Restoration Projects:  $125,000 and the remainder, if any, of the 
Non-Ferrous Taxation Study funds are budgeted to be used, at the discretion of the 
Commissioner, either to provide further funding for projects that implement the Laurentian 
Vision Innovation Project goals or for other mineland reclamation and restoration program 
projects. 
 
Motion carried. 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 28 

Laurentian Vision Innovation Projects $125,000 
Innovation grants stimulate collaborations between mining companies and 
communities. Grant criteria include using the active mining process to shape 
disturbed lands for future uses, solving public safety issues that arise from public 
use of private mine lands, and planning, design and implementation of land 
development projects. These grants may also support the strategies of Laurentian 
Vision Partnership that include: community and regional visioning, land design 
workshops (charrettes), Geographic Information System (GIS) mapping, and 
support efforts.  In FY10, it is anticipated that these funds will launch significant 
changes in the layout, design, and appearance of stockpiles.   
 
Mining and Minerals  $80,000 
Mining and minerals grants are for activities that promote and support 
Minnesota’s mining initiatives and activities.  Grants also fund activities that 
encourage the production and use of value added iron products and stimulate the 
exploration and development of non-ferrous minerals.  It is anticipated that with 
the increase in copper and nickel activity in FY10, these funds will primarily 
support activities that expand Minnesota’s mining industry. 

 
Commissioner Program  $500,000 
Grants under the Commissioner’s Program allow the agency to respond quickly to 
emergency situations or to support development opportunities that may not meet other 
program requirements.  The Commissioner provides quarterly reports to the Board on 
grant awards. 
 
Motion by Representative Rukavina that the expenditure of $500,000 for the Commissioner 
Program is approved subject to the following condition:   
 
• The Commissioner will report to the Board on the expenditure of the first $250,000 before the 

second $250,000 is approved.   
 
Motion carried. 
 
Culture and Tourism  $100,000 (Competitive) 
This program for nonprofits identifies initiatives unique to our region that strategically 
utilize cultural resources to stimulate tourism and enrich communities through artistic, 
heritage-related or recreational events. Culture and Tourism grants of up to $10,000 will 
be awarded for activities that improve the quality of life and generate economic returns.  
 
Application Fund  $40,000 
The Application Fund provides up to $3,500 for communities and businesses. Funds may 
be used to pay up to half the cost of preparing an application for financial support from 
another state, federal or private grant program.  
 
Region III  $580,509 
M.S. 298.17 authorizes Koochiching and Carlton County (Region III) grants from 
occupation taxes for economic and environmental development projects:   
• The allocation is equal to the amount that would have been generated by a 1.5-cent 

tax imposed on each taxable ton for the preceding production year.   



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 29 

• The amount for both counties in FY09 was $582,344 from which Iron Range 
Resources was reimbursed $14,000 for costs of administering the fund.   

• By law, one-third of the portion allocated for Koochiching County must be used to 
fund the Koochiching County Economic Development Commission. 

 
 
Programs Budget  
 

Grants FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Community Readiness   $850,000 $440,174 $1,450,000 
     Commercial Redevelopment  500,000 432,674 1,000,000 
     Workforce Development  250,000 018 400,000  
     Range Readiness 100,000 7,50019 50,000  
Mining and Mineland Reclamation    $800,000 $649,523 $490,000 
     Mineland Reclamation and Restoration 625,000 610,623 285,000 
     Laurentian Vision Innovation Projects 125,000 2,20020 125,000  
     Mining and Minerals  50,000 36,700 80,000 
Commissioner Program $500,000 $442,50021 $500,000  
Culture & Tourism $150,000 $150,000 $100,000 
Application Fund  $50,000 $13,110 $40,000 
Total  $2,350,000 $1,695,307 $2,580,000 
 
 
 

Region III Grant – Carlton/Koochiching FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Region III  $582,344 $582,344 $580,509 
 

                                                 
18 Pending FY09 Workforce Development grants include Dental Loan Forgiveness program ($140,000) and 
Area Health Education Consortium ($100,000). 
19 Pending FY09 Range Readiness program costs include $40,000 for facilitation services and housing 
expediter costs.  
20 The agency anticipates spending the remainder of these budget line item dollars prior to June 30, 2009 
for two pending stockpile reshaping projects. 
21 Pending FY09 Commissioner Program grant: Natural Resources Research Institute - PolyMet gypsum 
study ($38,400). 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 30 

Projects 
 
Iron Range Resources provides funding for a variety of community and economic 
development projects, as further described below.  The Commissioner brings specific 
projects to the Iron Range Resources Board for its approval at future meetings in 
accordance with M.S. 298.22, Subd. 1 (Board account), M.S. 298.223, Subd. 2 (Taconite 
Environmental Protection Fund) and M.S. 298.296, Subd. 1 (Douglas J. Johnson 
Economic Protection Trust Fund).    
 
Business Development  $8,500,000  
A total of $8,500,000 is designated for economic development projects to promote 
business development opportunities and attract new investments to the region.  
 
2009 Legislative Initiatives  $16,998,597 
 

Renewable Energy   $5,998,597  
The Omnibus Economic Development Bill reallocates $5,998,597 of Property 
Tax Relief funds to a special Taconite Environmental Protection Fund account for 
renewable energy initiatives. 

 
Windmill Blade Factory Appropriation  $10,000,000   
The Omnibus Economic Development Bill appropriates up to $10,000,000 from 
the Minnesota Minerals 21st Century Fund (MM21CF) to the commissioner of 
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation to make a grant or forgivable loan to a 
manufacturer of windmill blades at a facility to be located within the taconite tax 
relief area. Up to $10,000,000 from the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Trust Fund 
(corpus) is proposed to provide matching funds for the MM21CF appropriation. 

 
Small Business Fund  $1,000,000 
The Omnibus Economic Development Bill transfers in fiscal years 2010 and 2011 
$1,000,000 of earnings from the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust 
Fund to a special account. Funds in the special account are available for loans or 
grants to businesses, with priority given to businesses with 25 or fewer 
employees. Funds may be used for wage subsidies of up to $5 per hour or other 
activities that will create additional jobs in the taconite assistance area.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 31 

Projects Budget  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
22 FY09 expenditures for Public Works projects: $4,860,000 - approved as part of the FY09 budget; 
$8,035,000 - legislatively distributed in the Omnibus Economic Development bill. 
23 In FY09, $250,000 was transferred from Community Business Infrastructure to Public Works. 
24 In FY09, $450,000 of FY07 funds designated to the St. Louis & Lake Counties Regional Rail Authority 
(Mesabi Trailhead building) was reallocated to the Projects budget for biomass conversion grants. 
25 The Board will review a proposal to make eighteen FY09 Community Business Partnership grants at its 
June 18, 2009 meeting. 
26 FY09 projects to be considered at the June 18, 2009, Board meeting: Magnetation, Inc. ($1,485,000) and 
Greg Cook Logging ($84,000). These project dollars are not included in this line item. 
 

Development Projects FY 2009 
Budget 

FY 2009 
Projected 

FY 2010 
Budget 

Public Works $4,872,041 $12,895,00022 $0  
Community Business Infrastructure 750,00023 750,000  0 
Renewable Energy 500,000 150,000 0 
Biomass Conversion Grants 450,00024 450,000  0 
Community Business Partnership Grants 450,000 025 0  
Business Development  5,300,000 2,450,00026 8,500,000  
Legislative Reallocation - Renewable Energy 0 0 5,998,597 
Legislative Appropriation - Windmill Blade Factory 0 0 10,000,000 
Legislative Transfer - Small Business Fund 0 0 1,000,000 
Total Development Projects $12,322,041 $16,695,000 $25,498,597 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 32 

Specially Designated Funds 
 
Motion by Senator Bakk that $2,000,000 is reserved from the FY10 estimated 
carryforward out to enable the agency to implement the early separation incentive 
program authorized in Minnesota Statutes, Section 298.217, Subd. 2. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
 



FY 2010 Iron Range Resources Investment Plan 
Thursday, June 18, 2009  

Page 33 

APPENDIX  

Appendix A  Organizational Chart 


	Agenda
	Approval of the March 31, 2009, Minutes
	FY10 Agency Investment Plan
	Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund
	Community Business Partnership Grant Program
	Wage Subsidy Program

	Magnetation, Inc.
	Greg Cook Logging, Inc.
	Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund
	City of Ely – Iron Range Youth in Action

	FY10 Investment Plan Fnl 20090618 (3).pdf
	Introduction
	Mission
	Vision
	FY09 Highlights

	Investment Plan
	Agency Budget
	Revenues
	Expenditures
	Funding Sources

	Operations
	Administrative Services Division
	Administrative Services Operations Budget

	Human Resources & Strategic Results Division
	Human Resources & Strategic Results Operations Budget

	Legal Services
	Marketing & Communications Division
	Marketing & Communications Operations Budget

	Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort
	Giants Ridge Golf & Ski Resort Operations Budget

	Minnesota Discovery Center
	Community Development Division
	Community Development Operations Budget

	Business Development Division
	Business Development Operations Budget


	Programs
	Grants
	Programs Budget


	Projects
	Projects Budget

	Specially Designated Funds
	APPENDIX
	Appendix A  Organizational Chart



